
Page 1 of 5 
115 South Main Street   Hailey, Idaho 83333 (208) 788-9815  

 
 
 

Meeting Minutes 
Hailey Planning and Zoning Commission  

Monday, December 2, 2024 
5:30 p.m.  

 
Hailey Planning and Zoning Meetings are open to the public, in person, and by electronic means 

when available. The city strives to make the meeting available virtually but cannot guarantee 
access due to platform failure, internet interruptions or other potential technological 

malfunctions. Participants may join our meeting virtually by the following means: 
 

Join on your computer, mobile app, or room device. 
Click here to join the meeting 
Meeting ID: 249 576 139 181 

Passcode: Ge6Z7Q 
Download Teams | Join on the web 

 
Or call in (audio only) 

+1 469-206-8535,,602369677#   United States, Dallas 
Phone Conference ID: 602 369 677# 

 
 
Present 
Commission: Dan Smith, Janet Fugate, Owen Scanlon, Sage Sauerbrey, Jordan Fitzgerald 
Staff: Robyn Davis, Ashley Dyer, Jessie Parker, Emily Rodrigue, Christian Ervin 
 
5:31:06 PM Call to Order 

- Public Comment for items not on the Agenda. No comments.  
 

5:31:49 PM Consent Agenda - ACTION ITEM 
- CA 1 Motion to approve the meeting minutes dated October 21, 2024. ACTION ITEM 

 
- CA 2 Motion to approve the meeting minutes dated November 13, 2024. ACTION 

ITEM 
 

- CA 3 Motion to approve Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision of a 
Preliminary Plat Application by Lido Equities Group – Idaho, LLC, for a plat modification to 
Copper Ranch 5. This plat modification would vacate the previously platted land intended 
for Building 17, as well as amend/relocate snow storage locations elsewhere onsite. 
ACTION ITEM 

 
5:32:53 PM Sauerbrey motion to approve CA 2. Fitzgerald seconded. Fugate abstained. All in 
Favor. 
 
5:32:28 PM Scanlon motion to approve CA 1 and CA 3. Fitzgerald seconded. Smith and 
Sauerbrey abstained. All in Favor.   

City of Hailey 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
Zoning, Subdivision, Building and Business Permitting and Community Planning Services 
 
 
  

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NzNjNjA2Y2MtMzQ0OC00MWI5LWE3OWQtNDZkNWIzMTc4ZDUz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2242e19083-76f7-4129-9fde-874e596ed1a7%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22c9ec8de0-ef8c-4f17-8990-44c172695a20%22%7d
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app
https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting
tel:+14692068535,,602369677
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202173106&quot;?Data=&quot;78210d29&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202173149&quot;?Data=&quot;bbd35f69&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202173253&quot;?Data=&quot;91bd6b4b&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202173228&quot;?Data=&quot;5bb9dcf2&quot;


Page 2 of 5 
115 South Main Street   Hailey, Idaho 83333 (208) 788-9815  

 
Public Hearing(s) - ACTION ITEM  

- 5:33:13 PM PH 1   Consideration of a City-Initiated Text Amendment amending Hailey’s 
Municipal Code, Title 17: Zoning Regulations, Chapter 17.02: Definitions, to modify, refine, 
remove, and/or add various definitions to the title.  

 
5:33:26 PM Dyer introduced proposed amendments to definitions in Title 17.  
 
5:35:16 PM Chair Fugate expressed confusion on definition of Apartment. Chair Fugate suggested 
wording “regardless of unit type”.   
 
5:36:13 PM Fitzgerald asked if apartment could be a dwelling within a residential dwelling or if it 
would be an adu. Staff and commission discussed how an apartment is part of one or more residential 
buildings. Chair Fugate reiterated using wording “regardless of unit type”, noting how Sauerbrey 
stated all ADUs are apartments but not all apartments are ADUs. Fitzgerald would prefer to remove 
portion that states an apartment can be inside a house. Commission discussed how would remove 
language from definition but not eliminating ADU option.  
 
5:44:34 PM Davis read revised definition allowed.  
 
5:45:33 PM Fitzgerald brought up building footprint. Sauerbrey prefers second suggestion. All 
commissioners agreed. Commission discussed differences between suggestions one and two.  
 
5:48:46 PM Chair Fugate opened public comment to include Tom Holland in discussion.  
 
5:49:00 PM Thomas Holland, explained his understanding is that cantilevered sections have not been 
counted as part of the lot coverage.  
 
5:50:08 PM Sauerbrey explained reasoning for amendment. Chair Fugate asked Holland his 
suggestion on how he thinks it could be resolved.  
 
5:50:45 PM Scanlon added that when he did a certain project bay windows were not included. 
Commission continued to discuss, agreeing to add floor area to definition.  Sauerbrey noted how bay 
windows in his mind are excluded as it does not extend from floor to ceiling. Commission moved back 
to discuss suggestion two of proposed definitions.  All agreed with suggestion two as is for amended 
definition. 
 
5:57:12 PM Sauerbrey suggested changes to enclosed. Commission continued to discuss proposed 
definition of enclosed. All in agreement to include four walls, and amend second sentence to includes 
but not limited to retractable dividers, garage doors or other physical barriers.   Commission 
continued to discuss potential issue of if enclosed deck on three sides or breeze ways. Commission all 
agreed with definition as proposed with addition of “but not limited too”.  
 
6:06:31 PM Commission moved to unenclosed. All agreed to remove “full height”.  
 
6:08:15 PM Sauerbrey and Chair Fugate discussed if AMI should say medium of gross income. 
Commission discussed options and all agreed on aggregate medium of combined gross income of all 
persons living in the dwelling unit.  

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202173313&quot;?Data=&quot;c68629c3&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202173326&quot;?Data=&quot;77ccab5f&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202173516&quot;?Data=&quot;3737d076&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202173613&quot;?Data=&quot;8e6627a7&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202174454&quot;?Data=&quot;28d9410c&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202174533&quot;?Data=&quot;affd9a36&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202174846&quot;?Data=&quot;1e234f6d&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202174900&quot;?Data=&quot;6c735239&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202175008&quot;?Data=&quot;594a0ac3&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202175045&quot;?Data=&quot;30b19008&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202175712&quot;?Data=&quot;f76e301b&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202180631&quot;?Data=&quot;f0046a55&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202180815&quot;?Data=&quot;27244e3b&quot;


Page 3 of 5 
115 South Main Street   Hailey, Idaho 83333 (208) 788-9815  

 
6:10:27 PM Smith suggested saying divided by area of the lot on which the building is situated for 
Floor area Ratio. Fitzgerald suggested adding a definition of gross floor area and net floor area.  
 
6:11:23 PM Chair Fugate told Holland to raise his hand if has comments.  
 
6:11:38 PM Davis confirmed will add gross and net floor area and that will amend floor area ratio.  
 
6:13:36 PM Commission discussed whether to include siding or outer edge of building in perimeter 
definition.  
 
6:14:28 PM Holland noted that if do that; penalize anyone who runs exterior insulation. Commission 
continued to discuss where to begin measurement for gross floor area – stud, exterior face of 
structure, etc. Commission agreed to stay outer most finished surface of the building for building 
perimeter and that it would be a different definition then perimeter, suggesting calling it building 
perimeter. Sauerbrey expressed concern of discouraging exterior insulation. Commission and staff 
continued to discuss. Commissioners final decision is that building perimeter will be measured from 
exterior face of foundation or stud, whichever is larger.  
 
6:25:20 PM Fitzgerald went to commission definition, noted typo with extra common before and.  
 
6:26:13 PM Fitzgerald asked if density is always per acre. Staff confirmed. Fitzgerald asked about 
irrigation for drought tolerant, noting definition is fine as how it is. Chair Fugate noted extra common 
behind season.  
 
6:28:02 PM Chair Fugate suggested adding running water or operational sink vs. just sink. Commission 
all agreed to add functional sink, refrigerator and cooking facilities. Scanlon suggested removing “built 
in”. Commission discussed whether to remove built in or not, agreed to leave.    
 
6:30:56 PM Fitzgerald expressed confusion on Live/Work definition, noting IBC requirements for 
live/work such as work space required on main floor. Commission and staff agreed to amend 
definition to utilize IBC definition and keep last sentence of proposed definition. Fitzgerald suggested 
including needs to be owner or employee of the business occupied. Staff confirmed can add as well.  
 
6:34:35 PM Fitzgerald moved on to lot coverage – asking if decks and driveways should be included. 
All agreed would not include unless enclosed. Davis explained driveways and such are included in 
hardscape.  
 
6:35:52 PM Fitzgerald asked the difference between lot coverage and building footprint. Chair Fugate 
explained the difference.  
 
6:36:36 PM Chair Fugate suggested adding administrative before affairs in office definition. 
Commission all agreed.  
 
6:38:10 PM Fitzgerald moved to outdoor storage, suggested removing word safekeeping and 
replacing with storage. Commission agreed and also suggested removing word street.  
 

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202181027&quot;?Data=&quot;379e8495&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202181123&quot;?Data=&quot;7456135c&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202181138&quot;?Data=&quot;680b47f8&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202181336&quot;?Data=&quot;caf137b6&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202181428&quot;?Data=&quot;ebb79a39&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202182520&quot;?Data=&quot;099e094b&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202182613&quot;?Data=&quot;1330d3e8&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202182802&quot;?Data=&quot;755a751a&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202183056&quot;?Data=&quot;96d20375&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202183435&quot;?Data=&quot;d674417c&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202183552&quot;?Data=&quot;51509a46&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202183636&quot;?Data=&quot;86e4e9ef&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202183810&quot;?Data=&quot;fbcd050a&quot;


Page 4 of 5 
115 South Main Street   Hailey, Idaho 83333 (208) 788-9815  

6:39:09 PM Chair Fugate suggested area not located on any public or private street for parking, onsite 
definition. Fitzgerald confirmed parking onsite would apply to single family home and asked about 
long term parking of extra vehicles, rvs, boats etc. Chair Fugate suggested removing transient. 
Commission and staff discussed parking requirements for rvs, boats, etc. Commission continued to 
discuss options for refining definition of parking, onsite. Commission all agreed to add “private 
operational vehicles” in place of private passenger vehicles and to separate out into two sentences 
for last portion.  
 
6:47:36 PM Fitzgerald moved to parking area. Davis confirmed does not include public street.  
 
6:48:08 PM Chair Fugate confirmed adding building perimeter. Davis confirmed.  
 
6:48:23 PM Fitzgerald asked why calling street parking practice. Staff confirmed will change to area 
for parking a vehicle.  
 
6:49:13 PM Chair Fugate asked if need to include definition of subordinate. All agreed no.  
 
6:49:33 PM Fitzgerald noted start parking structure as a sentence. Davis confirmed can start 
definitions with an A.  
 
6:50:04 PM Fitzgerald moved to swimming pool, asked if popup pool could be within the setbacks. 
Davis confirmed it could because it would be temporary. Fitzgerald asked why setbacks are only 
applicable to structures that require a building permit. Davis explained pop up swimming pools are 
not required to have building permits. Davis asked if the goal is to have swimming pools comply with 
underlying zoning setbacks. Fitzgerald stated with underlying zoning setbacks. Commission continued 
to discuss setback requirements for pools and whether should define hot tub separately. Commission 
agreed to include within swimming pool definition to permanent or year round swimming pools shall 
comply with underlying zoning setbacks.  
 
7:01:07 PM Chair Fugate went back to unenclosed definition, all agreed to remove open … 
 
7:01:49 PM Fitzgerald moved to warehouse, what the difference is between warehouse and storage; 
that thinks need to be clear two different things. Chair Fugate asked if word distribution includes 
retail. Davis confirmed it does not include retail. Davis referenced storage structure definition. 
Fitzgerald suggested that it must be for distribution, to distinguish from storage facilities.  
 
7:04:43 PM Ervin noted there are clear definitions within IBC and IFC for warehouse and storage 
facilities.  
 
7:05:59 PM Davis confirmed will compare definitions with IBC and IFC.  
 
7:06:50 PM Chair Fugate asked if commissioners had further comments at this time.  None at this 
time.  
 
 
7:07:01 PM Chair Fugate opened public comment. No comment. Chair Fugate closed public comment.  
 
Commission and staff agreed to table and staff will renotice project for a future meeting.  

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202183909&quot;?Data=&quot;813399bb&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202184736&quot;?Data=&quot;a892f208&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202184808&quot;?Data=&quot;17f9e539&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202184823&quot;?Data=&quot;8d30c333&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202184913&quot;?Data=&quot;c70eb103&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202184933&quot;?Data=&quot;8ac61008&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202185004&quot;?Data=&quot;61082a0a&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202190107&quot;?Data=&quot;c29b0251&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202190149&quot;?Data=&quot;b9d53774&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202190443&quot;?Data=&quot;9e88d974&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202190559&quot;?Data=&quot;f6c3ea2b&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202190650&quot;?Data=&quot;0544a242&quot;
tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202190701&quot;?Data=&quot;219f540a&quot;


Page 5 of 5 
115 South Main Street   Hailey, Idaho 83333 (208) 788-9815  

 
Chair Fugate noted typo on section 4, diverse and section 7.1 should also say something about 
projects that strive to elevate them, help raise them. Davis confirmed can amend.  
 
Staff Reports and Discussion  

- SR 1  Discussion: Upcoming Projects, Code Changes, Next Planning and Zoning 
Meeting: 

 Monday, December 16, 2024:  
• DR Sweetwater (Tanner) 
• DR PreApp & CUP:1551 Aviation  

 
 
Davis confirmed may have another workshop prior to meeting with Council on latest updates for 
Comp Plan that staff will reach out the commission.  
 
Davis summarized upcoming projects for December 16th.  
 
7:15:42 PM Smith motioned to adjourn. Scanlon seconded. All in Favor.  

tre://ftr/?label=&quot;Planning&nbsp;and&nbsp;Zoning&quot;?datetime=&quot;20241202191542&quot;?Data=&quot;055cd5b1&quot;

